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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Wilmington terminal buildings of the former Pennsylvania Railroad consist of three
structures built during the first decade of the present century. First to be built was
the elevated track, erected between 1902 and 1905. The office building was completed
in 1905. Construction of the station began immediately after the office building was
finished. The complex served as the headquarters for the Philadelphia, Baltimore and
Washington subsidiary of the Pennsylvania system, and as a terminal. The elevated
track between French and King streets stands on an earth-fill embankment revetted with
stone walls, about 104 feet wide. Passenger platforms flank the four mainline tracks,
on the level of the station's second story. The inner two tracks are for Metroliner
service, while the outer tracks handle other trains. According to a date-stone, Ryan
and Kelley were the contractors; W. H. Brown was the chief engineer.

A steel truss carries the tracks and platforms across French Street between the station
proper and the earth-fill embankment.

The former railroad office building stands four stories high above a ground floor at
grade. There is an attic lighted by dormers under the hipped roof. The east and west
facades are five bays wide. The west facade is marked by a cornice above the first
story; the main entrance is on the ground floor. Above the ground floor is a water
table. Above the water table, the north and south elevations are marked by pilasters
that divide the upper floors into ten bays of two windows each and two bays of one window
each. Metal cornices at the eaves and stone lintels above the windows are found on all
sides of the brick building. Around the ground-floor entry on the west is a decorative
brown stone lintel.

The main station building is about 160 by 200 feet overall. The main floor, a little
above street level, contains the waiting room, cocktail lounge, newsstand, entrances,
rest rooms, baggage rooms, and ticket offices. The second floor, where the platforms
are located, is divided by the tracks. Staircases from the main waiting room provide
access to the three platforms, the middle of which is the new Metroliner platform.

Because the tracks run through the building, the second and third floors are divided
into two virtually separate buildings. The larger, south, building contains offices

and connects at the second floor to the office building to the south. The north struc-
ture contains a small waitihg room and the clock tower at the corner of Front and French
streets. The two parts are steel-framed, with walls of brick, brownstone and terra
cotta.

The north building, facing Front Street, is the more decorated part of the station. It
is three stories high with a hipped roof, bracketted cornice and dentils over a plain
frieze. The clock tower is decorated with stone and terra-cotta work, which is repeated
in plainer forms throughout the station.

The south building is similar, with a hipped roof. A dentil cornice occurs above the
street floor, and a modillion cornice at the eave. Roman arches above the top story
windows are connected by a belt course. Round medallions occur between the arches.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The passenger station, main structure of the complex, was designed by Furness, Evans,

and Company. The principal partner in this firm, Frank Furness (1839-1912), designed

other stations in a similar style, which he popularized. Until recently, Furness has

been best known for his influence on Louis Sullivan, his student. He has lately been

widely recognized for such major works as the Pennsylvania Academy of Fine Arts, Broad
Street Station, and the University of Pennsylvania library, in Philadelphia.

Wilmington was not only the headquarters of the Pennsylvania's Philadelphia, Wilmington,
and Baltimore subsidiary; it was the terminal for many of the trains from the Delaware
Railroad, later known as the Delmarva Division. Both lines had their operating head-
quarters in the office building, which stands vacant but intact to the south of the
- station. No major changes have occurred in the office building since it was first
occupied in the fall of 1905.

The Philadelphia, Wilmington, and Baltimore company was merged in 1902 with the Balti-
more and Potomac to become the Philadelphia, Baltimore and Washington. Thereafter,
the PW & B portion was operated as a division of the PB & W, headquartered in Wilming-
ton.

The elevated PB & W main line still carries passenger traffic through the station. This
raised line, which extends from Claymont to a point below Wilmington, was erected between
1902 and 1905 in an effort to eliminate grade crossings. Parts of it are masonry-arched
viaducts, while other parts are revetted earth fills, and others are steel through-truss
bridges.

After the elevated line was built, the twenty-year-~old French Street Station was razed
and the Furness station was erected on its site. Nearby stood stations of the Baltimore
and Ohio and Reading railroads, forming a freight and passenger complex along Christina
River. The buildings that are the subject of this nomination form the only remaining
intact group from this busy transportation center.

The station has not fared as well as the office building and the viaduct; its fittings
have been changed to provide modern ticket counters and restaurant facilities. Yet
most of the changes have been superficial; the brass handrails, ornate stone work, tile
floors, and glazed brick walls still are in place. A few years ago, the most radical
change to be suffered by the station took the form of a "Paint Your Station" project,
in which citizens were organized to cover the o0ld stone and brick with bright colors.
The bright colors, now faded and dirty, are scheduled for removal.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The property is bounded on the north by Front Street and on the south by the Christina
River. The station, office, and grounds occupy the space between French and Walnut
Streets. The western portion of the elevated platform extends along the south side of
Front Street, 104 feet wide, between French and King Streets.
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The neighborhood around the station on Front Street is an old commercial district, largely
abandoned, containing buildings from the eighteenth and nineteenth centuries. One of the
newest is a terminal hotel, diagonally across the French Street intersection from the
station. It is a few years newer than the station, and echoes some of its architectural
details. On the south and west, parking lots have replaced a busy terminal complex. On
the east, an elevated bridge approach blocks access to the site.



